

Senate Rules Committee Annual Report 2021-2022

To: Secretary Ben Givens
From: Rules Chair Sara Watson
Re: University Senate Rules Committee 2022
Date: May 17, 2022

This document details the activities of the Senate Rules Committee during academic year 2021-2022. It starts with a brief overview of the charge and membership of the Rules Committee. Then, as requested, it provides highlights of our work from this past year, as well as a look ahead at what issues might be becoming before our committee next year.

Charge and Membership

As specified in our bylaws, the charge of the Rules committee is to maintain the Faculty Rules. We serve both proactive and reactive roles. Proactively, we initiate changes to the Rules if we believe there need to be updates. Moreover, any group on campus can propose changes to the rules. Steering first screens these proposals and then routes them to Rules. We discuss and consult with other relevant committees and groups on campus, often making friendly amendments to ensure compliance with the law and clarity, before making recommendations to Steering on whether proposals should be brought to the full Senate for a vote.

The Rules Committee met 15 times during AY 2022. As highlighted below, our membership included six faculty, three students, the Senate secretary, and 3 ex-officio members (who represent the administration). Megan Ferguson provided crucial administrative support throughout the year.

<i>Rules Committee September 2021 to August 2022</i>		
<i>Member</i>	<i>Constituent</i>	<i>Term</i>
Jared Gardner	Faculty Council	2023
Karen Beard	Faculty Council	2023
Sara Watson (Chair)	Faculty Council	2023
Ann Allen	Faculty Council	2022
Gunjan Agarwal	Faculty Council	2022
Gregory LaBarge	Faculty Council	2022
Anna Valerius/Emily Needham	USG	2022
Alex Thomas	USAC	2022
Kane Kinion	CGS	2022
Emma Brennan	IPC	2022
Ben Givens	Senate Secretary	No expiry

Megan Ferguson	Recording Secretary	No expiry
Helen Malone	Provost designee	Ex officio
Brandon Lester	Legal Affairs	Ex officio

Highlights of 2022

Here I highlight the eight major rule changes that went through Rules this year; full versions of the rule changes are included in the Appendix.

Rule Change	Subject	Synopsis of Rule Change	Passed Senate
3335-19	Bylaws of the University Senate	Revise the bylaws of the University Senate to clarify that Senate meetings may be held in-person, virtually, or in hybrid format, and that efforts be made to not hold senate meetings on days of major religious observance.	January 27, 2022
3335-7	Titles for clinical/practice/teaching faculty	Standardize the titles of clinical/teaching/practice faculty and research faculty titles to make them consistent with tenure-track faculty titles.	January 27, 2022
3335-46 and 47	Committees of the Senate	The concept of organizing committees being distinct from standing committees is a source of confusion. To bring clarity to the structure of senate committees, this rule change rescinds rule 3335-5-47 (Organizing committees) and rule 3335-5-48 (Standing and special committees of the senate). Rule 3335-5-46 is modified to describe the organization and operations of all senate committees.	January 27, 2022
3335-5-47.1	Steering Committee	The President becomes a voting member of the Steering Committee, replacing the Senior VP for Finance. Clarifies membership and terms of service for Steering, and membership on senate.	February 24, 2022

		Removes references to Steering being an organizing committee of the senate.	
3335-5-47.3	Rules Committee	Clarifies membership, terms of service and organization of the senate rules committee.	January 27, 2022
3335-3, 3335-5 & 3335-17	Executive Dean titles	Removes title of Executive Dean from the rules. Clarifies governance functions of former executive deans.	February 24, 2022
3335-3	Administration	The current rule contains outdated names for university offices, committees, and administrator titles. This rule change makes these corrections, and also clarifies language.	March 24, 2022
3335-5-48.2, 48.3	Council on Distance Education, Learning and Information Technology (DELIT)	Splits the current Council on Distance Education, Libraries and Information Technology (DELIT) committee into two committees: a Library Committee and a Committee on Academic Technology	April 21, 2022

In addition to shepherding these rule revisions through the Senate, the Rules Committee also discussed several other issues that did not make their way to a full Senate vote.

1. The Rules committee deliberated on several proposals from the **Ad Hoc Committee on Senate Committee Realignment**'s spring 2021 report. Some suggestions were incorporated into a rule change (see 3335-5-47.3 above), but we chose not to implement some of the Ad Hoc committee's other recommendations. For example, the Ad Hoc committee recommended that Rules add to its regular duties the role of ensuring that university policies are in alignment with the Rules. There was strong agreement that this is outside of our purview, and with 140 policies and 180 pages of rules would paralyze the regular work of our committee. Instead, we felt this charge belongs with the Policy Review Committee. The PRC has Senate representation, and where relevant should be citing the relevant rule.
2. We similarly deliberated on the Ad Hoc committee's recommendation to split the Rules committee into two sub-committees, one to deal with Rules maintenance and the other to deal with new rule revisions. There was very strong consensus that this would not be a productive change. Rules members felt that it is important to have as many eyes on a rule change as possible, so that we can think through the potential implications. We also agreed that we do not want to inadvertently introduce inconsistencies into the Rules by having two separate groups introduce new language vs maintain the existing rules.

3. We considered a proposed rule change from the **Council on Student Affairs**, to add an additional member. After some feedback from Rules, CSA chose to withdraw their request for a rule change.
4. We also considered a proposal from **USG and the Muslim Students' Association** to approve a rule change on excused absences related to religious observances. Although there was strong support for the underlying principle of accommodations around religious observances both in Faculty Council and in Rules, Rules agreed that this rule revision required deeper thought—there were worries that as written it was too narrow and didn't carefully consider potential accreditation and other constraints. In the short-term the Rules committee felt it more appropriate to follow the recommendations of a 2019 Ad Hoc Report on Excused Absences, and worked with OAA to publicize expectations around excused absences for religious observances among both faculty and staff. We are in continued conversations with OAA and the MSA about next steps.
5. Finally, we heard a short presentation from Crichton Ogle on a proposed revision from the **AAUP**. We will be taking this rules revision proposal up in 2022.

Looking Ahead

The Rules Committee anticipates another busy year in 2022-23, as we already have a number of proposed rule revisions that will be coming our way. Our anticipated new business not mentioned above (the religious accommodations rule and the AAUP proposal) includes the following:

- **Mission and Charge of the Committee on Academic Freedom & Faculty Hearing Committee.** This is a proposal coming from the AAUP, Steering voted in April 2022 to send it to Rules next year.
- **Clarification of rules related to reporting of committees to Senate.** During the January and February 2022 senate meetings there was spirited discussion about conflicting language in the Rules about the role of Steering in agenda-setting, and what it means for a senate committee to make a "report to Senate." Steering voted in April to have Rules consider these issues and make proposals for a rule change.
- **Rule change on faculty resignations.** As a result of the Angela Bryant case, Faculty Council voted to request that the Rules Committee consider clarifying language on faculty resignations in the Faculty Rules.
- **Technology Transfer/Commercialization.**
- **Giving P-Status to non-tenure track faculty.** A summer working group is meeting to discuss a potential rule revisions here, whether something is sent to Rules will depend on the outcomes of that discussion.

APPENDIX: Rule Revisions from AY 2021-2022

This section provides redlined copies of the approved rule revisions outlined in the table on pages 2-3 above.

3335-19: Revisions to Senate By-Laws

3335-19-01 Rules of order.

Unless otherwise indicated, all meetings of the senate (throughout these bylaws the word "senate" shall be taken to mean the university senate) shall be conducted in accordance with the latest revision of "Robert's Rules of Order."

(Board approval dates: 3/13/1978, 7/30/2001, 8/1/2005)

3335-19-02 Meetings.

(A) Regular meetings of the senate shall be held during the autumn and spring semesters. In the spring semester each year the steering committee shall recommend, and the senate shall adopt and publish the schedule of regular meetings for the following academic year. This schedule shall include at least seven meetings spread over the academic year. The schedule shall make every effort to avoid meetings on days of major religious observances. Scheduled meetings may be cancelled by the steering committee when deemed appropriate.

(B) Meetings of the senate shall be held in-person, virtually, or in a hybrid format. Acceptable means of virtual participation include teleconferencing or videoconferencing that allows verification of identity and permits full participation in meetings.

~~(C)~~(C) Special meetings of the senate shall be scheduled upon:

1. Majority vote of senate members present and voting at any meeting, or
2. Call of the president of the university, or
3. Call of the steering committee, or
4. Petition signed by at least twenty-five voting members of the senate and presented to the secretary of the university senate.

~~(D)~~(D) If the petition requesting a special meeting specifically requests a meeting at the earliest date and is transmitted with the necessary supporting material for distribution to the membership, then a special meeting shall be called within eight days of receipt of the petition by the secretary of the university senate.

(DE) Written notice of the time and place of regular and special meetings, the order of business, and copies of any substantive proposals shall be sent to all members and alternate members at least five days prior to the senate meeting.

(EF) At a time of emergency the president shall have authority to call a special meeting without a five day advance notice.

(FG) All senate meetings shall be open to the public.

(Prior effective dates: 2/19/1988, 7/30/2001, 7/30/2010; Board approval dates: 6/22/2012, 6/6/2014, 2/27/2020)

3335-19-03 Agenda.

(A) Every meeting of the senate shall have an agenda. The agenda shall include the time and place of the meeting, order of business, and copies of any substantive proposals.

(B) The steering committee shall establish the agenda for all regular meetings. For this purpose, the steering committee

1. Shall receive through the university senate office proposals for senate action or other presentations to the senate from any committee of the senate, or university committee or council, or member of the senate, or any member of the university community.
2. Shall refer all substantive proposals for senate action to appropriate committees for review prior to entering them in an agenda, unless the proposal has been generated in such committee and has been so treated.
3. Shall, as soon as practicable, include in the agenda of a regular meeting all items submitted by any committee of the senate, or university committee or council, or member of the senate.
4. Shall set the agenda so that the scheduled business can be disposed of in a meeting of reasonable duration.
5. Shall include with each agenda an estimate of the time necessary to complete the regularly scheduled business of the senate.
6. May advise the senate of the apparent need for a special meeting.

In special meetings, the specific purpose set by the initiators of the special meetings shall take precedence over all others. Additional agenda items established by the steering committee may follow if time permits.

(C) The secretary of the university senate shall send and make available electronically copies of the agenda for all senate meetings to all members and alternate members at least five days prior to the meeting.

(Board approval dates: 3/13/1978, 11/28/1983, 2/19/1988, 1/7/2001, 7/30/2010, 4/6/2018)

3335-19-04 Order of business.

(A) The order of business for all meetings shall be as set forth in the agenda, except that the order of business and allocation of time may be altered by an action approved in the meeting. Upon completion of the business described in the agenda, the regular meetings shall proceed in the following order:

1. Unfinished business
2. New business
3. Comments and announcements
4. Adjournment

(B) A special meeting shall be limited to the purposes stated in its agenda.

(Board approval date: 3/13/1978)

3335-19-05 Floor privileges.

Proposals, measures, and resolutions shall be introduced on the senate floor by members of the senate only. Members of the university community who are not members of the senate may be granted the right to speak, but not to vote, on matters before the senate. When a request is made for this privilege, the chair shall ask the senate for objections and, hearing none, shall grant permission to speak. If objections are raised, the privilege shall be extended only by an action of the senate.

(Board approval date: 3/13/1978)

3335-19-06 Quorum and voting.

(A) A simple majority of the voting membership of the senate, ~~whether attending in person or virtually,~~ shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of the senate's business.

(B) Action by the senate shall be by vote of a majority of members present ~~and voting and shall normally be by voice vote,~~ except as otherwise required by these rules or by the latest revision of "Robert's Rules of Order."

~~(C) In alignment with Robert's Rules of Order, when a division of the senate is taken, the chair shall include the division when announcing the results.~~

(Board approval dates: 3/13/1978, 5/25/1991, 8/1/2005)

3335-19-07 Proposals for senate action.

(A) Proposals for senate action shall be classified as either routine or substantive, and treated accordingly.

(B) Routine proposals are those that do not establish or alter university policies, such as approval of the minutes or acceptance of reports or appointment of committee personnel, and include the call of a special

meeting. Such proposals may be introduced and acted upon in any meeting, subject only to the test of germaneness.

(C) Substantive proposals are those that establish or alter an academic program of study, or rules or bylaws within the senate's purview. Substantive proposals shall be:

1. Submitted to the university senate office in the complete and exact form intended for senate debate and adoption, and shall be processed by the steering committee following rule 3335-19-03 of the Administrative Code, except that proposals for presentation at a special meeting need not be submitted to the steering committee. If a substantive proposal is referred to a committee by the steering committee or by the senate, and any subsequent suggested changes are not acceptable to the originators of the proposal, then the steering committee shall place the original proposal and the suggested changes in the same agenda.
2. Sent to all members and alternate members of the senate as part of the agenda at least ~~seven~~five days prior to the meeting.
3. Moved and seconded by members of the senate and then opened for floor debate. The proposal may then be amended, referred to committee in whole or in part, tabled, postponed, divided, and/or adopted or rejected.
 - a. Amendments offered in floor debate are classified as minor or substantive. A substantive amendment alters the sense or strength of the original proposal. Determination of the status of an amendment is made by ruling of the chair or by vote of the senate. Classification may be made at the time a motion to amend has been made and seconded or after the senate has voted affirmatively in favor of the motion to amend.
 - b. If a motion from the floor is passed and is declared to be substantive, it cannot become effective until the next meeting of the senate. At that time it must be reconsidered, unless the committee which submitted the original proposal has requested a continuation from the steering committee. In case of a continuation, the steering committee shall, as soon as practicable, place the amendment on the agenda for reconsideration. The committee which submitted the original proposal shall be afforded the opportunity to present arguments against the amendment or to move substitute language for the amendment at the time of reconsideration. If substitute language is approved by the senate, the amendment as modified will become effective at that time. If substitute language is defeated or is not presented, the senate shall vote on reaffirmation of the amendment in the form originally passed except for possible changes of a purely editorial nature. The amendment may be reaffirmed and become effective at that time or it may be defeated. (This section may be set aside by a successful motion to suspend the bylaws of the senate as prescribed in paragraph (C) of rule 3335-19-13 of the Administrative Code.)

(D) Substitute statements or suggested amendments which are included in an original proposal and distributed in an agenda shall each be acted upon as a substantive proposal.

(E) Substitute statements or suggested amendments proposed by any senate or university committee or by any member of the senate, shall be received by the steering committee and shall be scheduled in the same agenda as the original proposal.

(F) Prior to a senate vote a proposal that establishes or alters rules or bylaws within the senate's purview shall be reviewed by the rules committee, which may recommend changes in accordance with paragraph (B)(4) of rule 3335-5-47.3 of the Administrative Code.

(Board approval dates: 3/13/1978, 2/6/1983, 1/15/1987, 5/3/1987, 7/30/2001, 7/30/2010)

3335-7: Clinical/Practice/Teaching Faculty Titles

Chapter 3335-7 ~~Rules of the university faculty concerning~~ Clinical/, teaching/, practice and research faculty appointment, reappointment and nonreappointment, and promotion

3335-7-01 Definition. Clinical/teaching/practice are faculty appointments of the same type that are fixed term contract appointments that do not entail tenure. These faculty are teacher/practitioners and shall be engaged primarily in teaching activities related to: a) courses or instructional situations involving live patients or live clients, b) courses or instructional situations involving the simulation of live patients or live clients, c) courses or instructional situations involving professional skills, or d) teaching as defined in chapter 3335-6-02(A)(2) of the Administrative Code.

(Board approval dates: 7/12/2002, 6/4/2004, 6/7/2013, 5/31/2019)

3335-7-02 Titles

Titles will be:

1. Clinical instructor, assistant clinical professor, associate clinical professor, or clinical professor.
2. Teaching instructor, assistant teaching professor, associate teaching professor or teaching professor.
3. Professional practice instructor, professional practice assistant professor, professional practice associate professor, or professional practice professor.

(Board approval dates: 7/12/2002, 6/4/2004, 6/1/2007, 6/7/2013, 11/3/2017, 11/16/2018, 5/31/2019)

**

3335-7-30 Definition

Research faculty appointments are fixed term contract appointments that do not entail tenure. Research faculty are researchers and shall be engaged in research related to the mission and goals of the academic unit.

(Board approval dates: 6/4/2004, 6/7/2013)

3335-7-31 Titles

Titles will be research assistant professor, ~~of (name of college, school or department),~~ research associate professor, or research ~~assistant~~ professor.

(Board approval dates: 6/4/2004, 6/7/2013)

3335-46 and 47: Committees of the Senate

3335-5-46 Senate committees ~~operating procedures.~~

(A) The senate may establish standing and special committees as it deems necessary or desirable.

(1) The standing committees of the senate are those committees defined in rules 3335-5-47.1, 3335-5-47.3, and 3335-5-48.1 to 3335-5-48.18 of the Administrative Code.

(2) A special committee is one established to carry out a specified task, at the completion of which it automatically ceases to exist.

~~The university senate shall have committees designated as organizing, standing, or special.~~

~~(A)~~ Membership.

~~(1) Unless otherwise designated by rule, the president shall appoint all committees of the university faculty and the senate (see paragraph (A)(2) of rule 3335-1-03 of the Administrative Code). The president shall appoint members of the administration; the council of graduate students, the inter-professional council, the undergraduate student government, the university staff advisory council, and the faculty council shall select members of their own constituency using procedures adopted by their respective bodies. See rule 3335-1-03 of the board of trustees bylaws for a general rule about the role of the president in making committee appointments.~~

~~(2) All standing and special committees of the senate shall include at least one faculty member of the senate senator.~~

~~(3) Unless otherwise specified by the rules, the number of tenure-track faculty on standing committees shall not be less than two-thirds of the faculty membership. Non-tenure-track faculty shall be appointed by the executive committee of the faculty council.~~

~~(24) When a rule provides for the option of selecting a designee to a committee, the designee shall be appointed by the person being replaced.~~

(3) Committee vacancy.

(a) The chair will report vacancies to the appropriate nominating source through the office of the university senate. For ~~the purpose of~~ this rule, a vacancy exists when an elected member is unable to meet the participation requirements defined by the committee.

(b) When an unexpired term becomes vacant, the vacancy shall be filled in a manner consonant with the original method of committee selection. A member selected to fill such a vacancy shall serve for the duration of the unexpired term.

(4) The membership of each committee shall be made known through the report of the secretary of the university senate.

(5) Terms of service.

(a) Faculty members shall serve three-year terms and are eligible for immediate reappointment to a second term. Following that they are ineligible for reappointment until

one full year has elapsed. Faculty members may not serve as chair of an individual committee for more than three successive years.

(b) Unless otherwise specified by the rules, staff members shall serve two-year terms and be eligible for reappointment.

(c) Unless otherwise specified by the rules, student members shall serve one-year terms and be eligible for reappointment.

(d) Appointed administration members shall serve two-year terms and be eligible for reappointments. ~~shall not be eligible for immediate reappointment until one full year has elapsed unless they have served less than two-thirds of a full term.~~

(e) Multiyear terms shall, whenever possible, be staggered so that approximately equal proportions of the number of members rotate off the committee each year.

(f) Unless otherwise specified by the rules, terms of service of senate committee members shall begin and end on the first day of autumn semester; incoming members may attend meetings as non-voting members as soon as they are appointed or elected.

(6) Student alternates.

Unless otherwise designated by rule, graduate, inter-professional and undergraduate student members of standing and special committees of the senate may have an alternate. The alternate shall be selected from the same ~~area of representation constituency~~ as the original appointment. Student members shall advise the chair of the alternate's name prior to the meeting in which the member will be absent. The chair has responsibility for recording correct voting status. If the member has voting status, the alternate may vote in the event of the member's absence.

If the member has speech and debate privileges, the alternate shall retain these privileges in the member's absence. Whenever possible, potential alternates will be identified by appointing authority at the beginning of the academic year.

(B) Duties and responsibilities.

(1) Senate committees shall report at least annually to the senate at a time and in a manner specified by the steering committee of the senate.

(2) Senate committees shall define reasonable participation requirements for the conduct of ongoing business.

(C) Operating Procedures and Organization.

(1) Meetings of standing and special committees of the senate shall be held in-person, virtually, or in a hybrid format. Acceptable means of virtual participation include teleconferencing or videoconferencing that allows verification of identity and permits full participation in meetings.

(2) A simple majority of the voting membership of the senate committee, whether attending in person or virtually, shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of the committee's business.

(3) Action by senate standing and special committees shall be by vote of a majority of members present, except as otherwise required by these rules or by the latest revision of "Robert's Rules of Order."

(4) Committee chairs. Except where otherwise specified by the rules, in the spring each committee shall elect a chair from its continuing membership, whose term shall begin the subsequent summer session; ~~where it is deemed useful,~~ committees may also elect a vice-chair or chair-elect in the autumn to assist the current.

(Board approval dates: 5/1/1986, 7/10/1997, 2/5/1988, 5/3/1996, 9/1/1999, 4/4/2008, 5/14/2010, 6/30/2012, 6/7/2013, 4/8/2016)

~~3335-5-47 Organizing committees of the senate.~~

~~(A) The senate shall have two organizing committees (see rules 3335-5-47.1 to 3335-5-47.3 of the Administrative Code):~~

- ~~1. Steering committee;~~
- ~~2. Rules committee.~~

~~(B) Membership.~~

- ~~3. The president shall appoint members of the administration; the council of graduate students, the inter-professional council, the undergraduate student government, and the faculty council shall select members of their own constituency using procedures adopted by their respective bodies.~~
- ~~4. Only members of the senate may serve on organizing committees.~~
- ~~5. Terms of service:~~
 - ~~a. Faculty members shall serve two-year terms and are eligible for immediate reelection or reappointment to a second term. Following that they are ineligible for reelection or reappointment until one full year has elapsed. Faculty members may not serve as chair of an individual committee for more than three successive years.~~
 - ~~b. Student members shall serve one-year terms and shall be eligible for reappointment.~~
 - ~~c. Appointed administration members shall serve two-year terms and shall not be eligible for immediate reappointment until one full year has elapsed unless they have served less than two-thirds of a full term.~~
 - ~~d. Multiyear terms shall be staggered so that approximately equal proportions of the number of members retire each year.~~

~~(C) Organizing committees are also governed by the provisions of rule 3335-5-46 of the Administrative Code.~~

~~(Board approval dates: 5/1/1986, 2/5/1988, 2/2/1990, 4/5/1990, 11/4/1994, 8/6/2006, 5/14/2010)~~

~~3335-5-48 Standing and special committees of the senate.~~

~~(A) The senate may establish such standing and special committees as it deems necessary or desirable.~~

6. ~~The standing committees of the senate are those committees defined in rules 3335-5-48.1 to 3335-5-48.18 of the Administrative Code.~~
7. ~~A special committee is one established to carry out a specified task, at the completion of which it automatically ceases to exist.~~

~~(B) Membership.~~

8. ~~All standing and special committees of the senate shall include at least one faculty member of the senate.~~
9. ~~Unless otherwise specified by the rules, the number of tenure-track faculty on standing committees shall not be less than two-thirds of the faculty membership. Non-tenure-track faculty shall be appointed by the executive committee of the faculty council.~~
10. ~~Unless otherwise specified by the rules, or by the senate, the president shall appoint members of the administration; the council of graduate students, the inter-professional council, the undergraduate student government, the university staff advisory committee and the faculty council shall select members of their own constituency using procedures adopted by their respective bodies.~~
11. ~~Terms of service.~~
 - e. ~~Faculty members shall serve three-year terms and are eligible for immediate reappointment to a second term. Following that they are ineligible for reappointment until one full year has elapsed. Faculty members may not serve as chair of an individual committee for more than three successive years.~~
 - f. ~~Unless otherwise specified by the rules, student members shall serve one-year terms and be eligible for reappointment.~~
 - g. ~~Appointed administration members shall serve two-year terms and shall not be eligible for immediate reappointment until one full year has elapsed unless they have served less than two-thirds of a full term.~~
 - h. ~~Multiyear terms shall be staggered so that approximately equal proportions of the number of members retire from the committee each year.~~
12. ~~Student alternates.~~

~~Unless otherwise designated by rule, graduate, inter-professional and undergraduate student members of standing and special committees of the senate may have an alternate. The alternate shall be selected from the same area of representation as the original appointment. Student members shall advise the chair of the alternate's name prior to the meeting in which the member will be absent. The chair has responsibility for recording correct voting status. If the member has voting status, the alternate may vote in the event of the member's absence. If the member has speech and debate privileges, the alternate shall retain these privileges in the member's absence. Whenever possible, potential alternates will be identified by appointing authority at the beginning of the academic year.~~

~~(C) Standing and special committees are also governed by the provisions of rule 3335-5-46 of the Administrative Code.~~

~~{Board approval dates: 5/1/1986, 2/5/1988, 4/5/1991, 2/4/1993, 11/4/1994, 5/6/2005, 8/6/2007, 10/29/2009, 6/6/2014, 5/31/2019}~~

3335-47.1 and 3335-5-37: Steering Committee and Senate Membership

3335-5-47.1 Steering committee.

(A) Membership.

The steering committee shall consist of eighteen members.

(1) Fifteen voting members.

(a) Six faculty members elected by faculty council as specified in the faculty council bylaws.

Elected faculty members shall serve two-year terms and are eligible for immediate reelection or reappointment to a second term. Following that they are ineligible for reelection or reappointment until one full year has elapsed.

(b) The chair of faculty council. The chair-elect of the faculty council shall have full voting privileges if the chair cannot attend.

(c) Four student representatives.

(i) The president of the council of graduate students. The vice president of the council of graduate students or another designee who is a member of the university senate may attend steering committee meetings with full voting privileges if the president cannot attend.

(ii) The president of the inter-professional council. The vice president of the inter-professional council or another designee who is a member of the university senate may attend steering committee meetings with full voting privileges if the president cannot attend.

(iii) The president of the undergraduate student government. The vice president of the undergraduate student government or another designee who is a member of the university senate may attend steering committee meetings with full voting privileges if the president cannot attend.

(iv) An undergraduate student who is a member of the university senate and who is appointed by the vice president of the undergraduate student government. The student shall serve a one-year term and are eligible for reappointment.

(d) Three administrators.

(i) The president of the university

(ii) The executive vice president and provost.

~~(ii) The senior vice president for business and finance.~~

(iii) A dean appointed by the president, who shall serve a two-year term and is eligible for immediate reelection or reappointment to a second term. Following that they are ineligible for reelection or reappointment until one full year has elapsed.

(e) The chair of the university staff advisory committee. The chair-elect of the

university staff advisory committee shall have full voting privileges if the chair cannot attend.

(2) Three nonvoting members.

(a) The secretary of the university senate.

(b) The chair-elect of faculty council.

(c) The chair-elect of the university staff advisory committee.

(3) All members shall be current university senators during the first year of their term but may continue to serve after their senate term concludes.

(B) Duties and responsibilities.

(1) Be the senate's committee on committees: the steering committee shall have the power to call, by vote of nine of its members, a special meeting of the senate, and shall have such power and duties as the senate may delegate to it during periods when the senate is not in session. It may create subcommittees and may delegate to them any of its powers, functions, and duties.

(2) Review the structure, operation, and effectiveness of the senate and its committees. It shall receive suggestions, review proposed rule changes, and initiate recommendations for change in the structure and operation of the senate, including structure, duties, and responsibilities of senate committees, without, however, in any way restricting the senate's authority to alter its operations by other means. The steering committee may also review other proposed rule changes prior to presentation to the senate.

(3) Serve as a channel of communication between the senate and the president and the board of trustees. Members shall be an advisory group available to both the president and the board of trustees for advice and counsel on any matter relating to the operation and development of the university. ~~After consulting with the president, t~~The members of the steering committee may request and obtain a meeting with the board of trustees.

(4) Meet at least once every year with the chair of each standing committee that does not report to senate through faculty council.

(C) Organization.

(1) For the period of time beginning with the election of steering committee members in spring semester and ending with the start of the autumn semester, the steering committee shall include its newly elected members as non-voting members.

(2) The committee shall annually elect a chair from its faculty membership.

(3) As an ~~organizing~~ standing committee of the senate, ~~this committee~~ it is also governed by the provisions of rules ~~3335-5-46 and 3335-5-47~~ of the Administrative Code.

(Board approval dates: 5/1/1986, 7/11/1986, 2/5/1988, 4/7/1989, 11/2/1990, 11/4/1994, 5/3/1996, 4/4/1997, 12/4/1998, 6/7/2005, 5/14/2010, 6/7/2013, 6/5/2015, 5/31/2019)

3335-5-37 Membership.

There shall be a university senate, a unicameral body constituted as follows:

(A) Voting members: the voting members of the senate (throughout this document the word "senate" shall be taken to mean the university senate) shall consist of:

1. Twenty-four administration members.
2. Seventy-one faculty members.
3. Forty-one student members, consisting of twenty-six undergraduate, ten graduate, and five professional student members.
4. Five staff members.

Any change in the number of members representing ~~one of three primary categories~~ administration, faculty, staff or students shall necessitate an adjustment in the total membership in order to maintain to the nearest percentage the ratio of these numbers.

(B) Non-voting members: Unless they are already voting members of senate, holders of the positions listed below shall be non-voting members of the senate. Non-voting members are senate members not entitled to vote on the floor of the senate, but may otherwise ~~to~~ participate in all senate deliberations. They, shall include the chair and chair-elect of faculty council (~~if not a member of the senate~~), senate committee chairs (~~if not members of the senate~~), the president of the alumni association, the secretary and the recording secretary of the university senate, the president and vice-president of the undergraduate student government, the president and vice-president of the council of graduate students, ~~and~~ the president and vice-president of the inter-professional council, and the chair and chair-elect of the university staff advisory committee.

(Board approval dates: 7/7/1972, 6/14/1974, 7/9/1976, 7/22/1977, 7/20/1979, 2/3/1984, 2/7/1986, 2/1/1991, 4/7/1995, 5/3/1996, 8/1/1997, 12/4/1998, 4/6/1999, 7/7/2000, 5/6/2005, 5/14/2010, 6/5/2015, 5/31/2019)

3335-47.3: Rules Committee Organization

3335-5-47.3 Rules committee.

A. Membership.

The rules committee shall consist of eleven members.

1. Six faculty senators appointed by the executive committee of the faculty council
2. Three students.
 - a. One graduate student.
 - b. One professional student.
 - c. One undergraduate student
3. One staff senator, appointed by the university staff advisory committee.
4. One administrator. The secretary of the university senate.
5. Three non-voting, ex-officio members (or their designees)
 - a. Executive vice president and provost
 - b. Senior vice president and general counsel
 - c. Recording secretary of the university senate

B. Terms of Service

1. Faculty members shall serve three-year terms.
2. Staff members shall serve two-year terms.
3. Student members shall serve one-year renewable terms.
4. Members shall be senators during the first year of their term but may continue to serve on the rules committee after their senate term concludes.
5. Members who are senators are eligible for immediate reelection or reappointment to a second term. Following that they are ineligible for reelection or reappointment until one full year has elapsed.
6. The chair shall be a faculty member and may not serve as chair for more than three successive years.

C. Duties and responsibilities.

1. Be responsible, in cooperation with the secretary of the university senate, for the monitoring of the "Rules of the University Faculty" and of all statutes and bylaws pertaining to the senate.
2. Ensure that all published rules and bylaws within the senate's purview are up to date, and recommend their republication at such intervals as may be desirable.
3. Make recommendations for the revision of the procedural rules of the senate.
4. Before senate action, the committee shall receive all proposed new rules and changes in existing rules. It shall review them and recommend such editorial or other changes it deems necessary to avoid conflict with other rules, to enhance clarity and precision, and to avoid ambiguity.
5. Initiate rules or changes in existing rules and recommend them to the steering committee for scheduling for senate action.
6. The secretary of the university senate in agreement with the rules committee may make non-substantive corrections in diction and grammar, and is authorized to correct names of offices, officers, units, credentials or constituents in the bylaws and in the rules without deliberation by the university senate nor by the board of trustees.

D. Organization.

As an ~~organizing~~standing committee of the senate, this committee is also governed by the provisions of rules 3335-5-46 and ~~3335-5-47~~ of the Administrative Code.

(Board approval dates: 5/1/1986, 7/11/1986, 2/5/1988, 2/4/1993, 11/4/1994, 5/3/1996, 2/2/2001, 6/7/2005, 5/14/2010, 6/6/2014, 5/31/2019. 2/27/2020)

3335-3, 3335-5, 3335-17: Executive Dean Titles

REDLINED VERSION

3335-3-23 Council of deans.

(A) The executive vice president and provost, the deans of the colleges, ~~the executive dean of the college of arts and sciences~~, the senior vice president for business and finance, the vice president for research, the dean of the graduate school, the deans and directors of the regional campuses, the dean for undergraduate education, and the dean of libraries shall comprise the council of deans of the university. The executive vice president and provost shall be chair of the council.

3335-3-26.1 Establishment of regional campuses.

(B) The four regional campuses shall be administered separately by their respective deans and directors. ~~However, matters of common concern to the regional campuses shall be coordinated through a coordinating council of regional campus deans and directors. The executive dean for regional campuses, created in rule 3335-3-26.2 of the Administrative Code, shall serve as chair of the council.~~

~~3335-3-26.2 Executive dean for regional campuses.~~

~~(A) There shall be an executive dean for regional campuses. The executive dean shall be appointed from among the four regional campus deans and directors by the executive vice president and provost in consultation with the president to serve a two-year term and shall be eligible for reappointment.~~

~~(B) The executive dean for regional campuses shall report to the executive vice president and provost.~~

~~(C) The executive dean for regional campuses shall serve as chair of the coordinating council of regional campus deans and directors (see rule 3335-3-26.1 of the Administrative Code).~~

~~(D) The executive dean for regional campuses shall also be responsible for such other matters pertinent to the regional campus which may be designated by the executive vice president and provost.~~

3335-3-29 Deans of the colleges.

(A) There shall be a dean of each college ~~and an executive dean of the college of arts and sciences~~ who shall be a member of its faculty and the administrative head of the college. Each dean ~~and the executive dean~~ shall be appointed and reappointed by the board of trustees upon nomination of the president. Before making this nomination or recommendation for reappointment, the president shall confer with members of the faculty of the college for which the dean or executive dean is to be appointed and shall give substantial weight to faculty recommendations in reaching a decision. The president shall also consider the recommendations of the chairs of the departments and the directors of the schools in that college.

(B) The major responsibility of the dean of each college ~~and the executive dean of the college of arts and sciences~~ shall be that of providing active leadership in the promotion, direction and support of educational and research activities of the university, in the maintenance of a high level of morale among the faculty, and in the encouragement of the spirit of learning among the students. In addition the dean ~~or the executive~~

~~dean~~ shall have general administrative responsibility for the program of the college, subject to the approval of the president and the board of trustees. These administrative responsibilities shall include the duty:

...

(C) The dean ~~and executive dean of the college of arts and sciences~~ is hereby given authority requisite to carrying out the responsibilities of ~~his or her~~ their position. The dean ~~and the executive dean~~ may delegate any of ~~his or her~~ their responsibility and authority to another member of the faculty of the college. The dean ~~and executive dean~~ shall be a voting member of the faculty of each department.

(D) The usual method of communication between the dean ~~and executive dean of the college of arts and sciences~~ and the president or the board of trustees shall be through the appropriate staff member, then to the president and through the president to the board of trustees.

(Board approval dates: 4/4/1997, 2/6/1998, 12/4/1998, 9/1/1999, 12/2/2005, 2/11/2011, 11/9/2012)

3335. Dean and director of a regional campus.

...

~~10. Consult with the executive dean for regional campuses on matters of common concern to the regional campuses.~~

3335-5-33 Membership.

There shall be a graduate council constituted as follows:

(B) Faculty members: twelve members of the graduate faculty shall be appointed for terms of three years by the vice provost for graduate studies and dean of the graduate school in consultation with ~~the executive deans~~ and senate faculty leadership (the chair and vice-chair of faculty council, the chair of the senate steering committee, and the university senate secretary). Three of the twelve shall be members of the university senate. Graduate faculty members should have experience as a graduate studies committee chair, department chair, or other significant involvement in graduate education. Nine of the twelve graduate faculty members shall be nominated by the council of deans ~~executive deans~~ from lists solicited from the faculty of their respective colleges. ~~in the following manner: three by the executive dean of the colleges of the arts and sciences; three by the executive deans of the health sciences; three by the executive deans of the professional colleges.~~ Three of the twelve graduate faculty members shall be appointed by the vice provost for graduate studies and dean of the graduate school.

(C) Alternate faculty members. Each faculty member of the graduate council is expected to attend its meetings regularly. Alternate representatives shall be identified by ~~each executive~~ the council of deans and approved by the vice provost for graduate studies and dean of the graduate school. Alternates shall have the general powers and privileges as of the member represented. Service as an alternate does not make the alternate ineligible for membership in the council the following year.

3335-5-48.11 Fiscal committee.

(3) Three staff members. The term of service is three years.

(a) Two staff members with extensive fiscal and budgetary experience and expertise, one selected by the faculty council in consultation with the university staff advisory committee, and one selected by the ~~executive~~ council of deans ~~in consultation with the senior fiscal officers.~~

(b) One staff member appointed by the president.

(4) Eight administrators.

(a) Two central administration officials appointed by the president. These members are non-voting.

(b) The dean of arts and sciences

~~(b)~~ A regional campus dean, selected by the council of deans.

~~(d) The Four~~ Two ~~executive~~ deans selected by the ~~provost~~ council of deans.

~~(e)~~ The executive vice president and provost, or designee. This member is non-voting.

~~(f)~~ The senior vice president and chief financial officer, or designee. This member is non-voting.

3335-5-48.18(A)(4) Graduate associate compensation and benefits committee.

(4) One department, school, center or college-level staff member with extensive fiscal and budgetary experience and expertise, selected by the ~~executive~~ council of deans ~~in consultation with the senior fiscal officers~~, non-voting.

BYLAWS OF THE UNIVERSITY SENATE

3335-17-01 Administration members.

The twenty-four members from the administration shall consist of the university president, the executive vice president and provost, the senior vice president for business and finance, the senior vice president for research, the senior vice president of student life, the deans of the fifteen colleges, ~~the executive one~~ dean ~~for~~ from the regional campuses for a two-year term as selected by the council of deans, the dean of the graduate school, the dean for undergraduate education and the dean of libraries.

Senate revision dates: 4/14/2005, 4/18/2019, 11/14/2019

(Board approval dates: 5/7/2004, 5/6/2005, 2/11/2011, 5/31/2019, 11/21/2019)

3335-3: Administration

Chapter 3335-3 Administration

3335-3-1 President.

- (A) The president shall be the chief executive officer of the Ohio State University subject to the control of the board of trustees (BOT). Duties, authority and rights are as specified in the BOT bylaws 3335-1-03(A).
- (B) Any responsibility of the president may be delegated to any other member of the faculty or staff of the university, subject to any BOT limitations. The president will retain final authority and responsibility for administration of the university. Delegation of major areas shall be in writing to the BOT before implementation as specified in BOT bylaw 3335-1-03[~~EF~~].
- (C) The president shall designate a president's planning cabinet. The cabinet shall provide advice and counsel to the president, to discuss, deliberate and serve as the primary decision-making body on major university policies, information sharing, and other roles as the president shall determine, as specified in BOT bylaw 3335-1-03[~~FG~~].
- (D) Principal administrative officials shall include the members of the president's cabinet, the deans of the colleges and the dean and directors of regional campuses and their designated staffs, the dean of the university libraries, chairs of academic departments, directors of schools and academic centers, and such other administrative officials as determined by the president, as specified in BOT bylaw 3335-1-03[~~GH~~].

(Board approval dates: 6/3/2020)

3335-3-2 Executive vice president and provost.

- (A) The executive vice president and provost shall be the chief operating officer of the university. Under the direction of the president, the executive vice president and provost is responsible for oversight of all academic programs, instructional affairs and faculty affairs of the university. Duties, authority and rights are as specified in BOT bylaw 3335-1-03(B).
- (B) Any responsibility of the executive vice president and provost may be delegated to any other member of the faculty or staff of the university, subject to any university limitations. The executive vice president and provost will retain final authority and responsibility for operations of the university. Delegation of major areas shall be in writing to the president before implementation.
- (C) The executive vice president and provost shall designate a senior management council. The council shall provide advice to the provost, discuss, deliberate and serve as the primary decision-making body on academic or university policies and other roles as the provost shall determine. The provost shall chair a council of deans as ~~prescribed~~ in rule 3335-3-223.

(Board approval dates: 6/3/2020)

3335-3-3 Senior vice president for business and finance.

The senior vice president (~~SVP~~) for business and finance shall be the chief financial officer of the university. Under the direction of the president, the SVP senior vice president for business and finance is responsible for the administration of the university's business, financial and administrative operations. Duties, authority and rights are as specified in BOT bylaw 3335-1-03(C).

(Board approval dates: 6/3/2020)

3335-3-4 Vice President.

An individual holding a vice president title shall report to the president, or to the executive vice president and provost, and shall be selected in accordance with BOT procedures.

(Board approval dates: 6/3/2020)

3335-3-5 Vice Provost.

An individual holding a vice provost title shall report to the executive vice president and provost and shall be selected in accordance with university procedures.

(Board approval dates: 6/3/2020)

3335-3-6 Executive Vice President and Chancellor.

The chancellor shall be the chief executive officer of the Wexner Medical Center and shall be appointed by the Wexner Medical Center Board of Trustees. Duties, authority and rights are as specified in the bylaws of the medical staff.

(Board approval dates: 7/12/1991, 2/4/1993, 4/4/1997, 6/18/2010, 6/3/2020)

3335-3-7 ~~V~~Senior vice president and director of athletics.

- (A) The senior vice president and director of athletics shall be appointed by and responsible to the president. The athletic council (see rule 3335-5-48.5) shall also be consulted in the appointment of the athletic director.
- (B) Under policies established by the athletic council, the senior vice president and director of athletics shall administer the intercollegiate athletics program subject to the direction of the president or their designee.
- (C) The athletic physical plant shall be under the concurrent jurisdiction of the department of athletics and the office of ~~physical facilities~~ facilities operation and development. Athletic physical plant employees shall be under the jurisdiction of the department of athletics, which in consultation with the office of physical facilities shall be responsible for all normal maintenance and repairs. Major remodeling, renovation, construction and other capital improvements shall be undertaken only with the prior approval of, and under

the direction of, the office of ~~physical facilities~~ facilities operation and development.

(Board approval dates: 12/4/1998, 3/5/2003, 7/11/2008, 4/8/2016, 6/3/2020)

3335-3-23 Council of deans.

- (A) The executive vice president and provost, the deans of the colleges, the senior vice president for business and finance, the vice president for research, the dean of the graduate school, the deans and directors of the regional campuses, the dean ~~for~~of undergraduate education, and the dean of libraries shall comprise the council of deans of the university. The executive vice president and provost shall be chair of the council.
- (B) The council of deans shall meet on the call of the chair. The council of deans shall serve as an advisory council to the president.

(Board approval dates: 10/5/1973, 2/2/1979, 4/3/1981, 7/9/1982, 3/2/1984, 12/5/1986, 11/2/1990, 5/3/1996, 4/4/1997, 12/4/1998, 10/1/1999, 5/7/2004, 6/7/2005, 2/1/2006, 2/11/2011, 11/21/2019, 6/3/2020)

3335-3-25 Organization of the university.

- (A) For the purpose of administering the various programs of the university, there shall be established educational and administrative units within the university. All units of the university shall be established, altered, or abolished only ~~on vote of~~ by the board of trustees.
- (B) Procedures for recommending the establishment, alteration and abolition of educational units shall be promulgated by the university faculty or the university senate and approved by the board of trustees (see rules 3335-3-37 and 3335-5-48.1 of the Administrative Code). Procedures recommending the establishment, alteration and abolition of administrative units shall be promulgated by the president and approved by the board of trustees.
- (C) The basic organization of the educational units of the university shall be as established in paragraph (B) of rule 3335-1-05 of the Administrative Code.

(Board approval dates: 8/1/1997, 6/1/2001, 6/7/2005)

3335-3-26 Establishment of colleges and graduate school.

For educational administration, the university shall be organized into a graduate school and fifteen colleges, as established in ~~paragraph (B)(3)~~ of rule 3335-1-05 (B)(3) of the Administrative Code.

(Board approval dates: 8/1/1997, 5/4/2001, 6/29/2001, 6/7/2005, 7/7/2006, 7/11/2008, 2/11/2011, 4/8/2016)

3335-3-26.1 Establishment of regional campuses.

- (A) There shall be four regional campuses of the university, as established in paragraph (B)(5) of rule 3335-1-05 of the Administrative Code.

(B) The four regional campuses shall be administered separately by their respective deans and directors.

(Board approval dates: 2/1/1980, 12/5/1986, 5/3/1996, 6/7/2005, 4/8/2016)

3335-3-27 Organization of the graduate school.

The graduate school shall consist of those components established in ~~paragraph (B)(4) of~~ rule 3335-1-05 (B)(4) of the Administrative Code.

(Board approval dates: 6/7/2005, 4/8/2016)

3335-3-28 Dean of libraries.

(A) The dean of libraries shall be appointed by the board of trustees upon nomination of the president. Before making this nomination, the president shall confer with the executive vice president and provost who, in turn, shall confer with representatives of the faculty of the university libraries and with the ~~council on distance education, libraries and information technology~~ library committee.

(B) The dean of libraries shall have the responsibility and authority for administering the university libraries under the jurisdiction of that office and the university archives. In the discharge of library duties, the dean shall be guided by the policies established by the ~~council on distance education, libraries and information technology~~ library committee (see rule 3335-5-48.2X of the Administrative Code). The dean ~~shall~~ report to the president through the executive vice president and provost.

(C) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the dean shall evaluate continuously the administrative and operating practices of the university libraries under the jurisdiction of that office and the university archives, and lead in the study of methods in improving them; recommend appointments, promotions, and dismissals under the rules of the university; and prepare for the approval of the executive vice president and provost's annual recommendations for the budgets for personnel and for archives and library materials.

(Board approval dates: 4/4/1997, 12/4/1998, 6/7/2005, 11/21/2019)

3335-3-29 Deans of the colleges.

(A) There shall be a dean of each college shall be a member of its faculty and the administrative head of the college. Each dean shall be appointed and reappointed by the board of trustees upon nomination of the president. Before making this nomination or recommendation for reappointment, the president shall confer with members of the faculty of the college for which the dean or executive dean is to be appointed and shall give substantial weight to faculty recommendations in reaching a decision. The president shall also consider the recommendations of the chairs of the departments and the directors of the schools in that college.

(B) The major responsibility of the dean of each college shall be that of providing active leadership in the promotion, direction and support of

educational and research activities of the university, in the maintenance of a high level of morale among the faculty, and in the encouragement of the spirit of learning among the students. In addition, the dean shall have general administrative responsibility for the program of the college, subject to the approval of the president and the board of trustees. These administrative responsibilities shall include the duties to:

- (1) ~~To p~~Preside at meetings of the college faculty and to appoint all college committees unless their membership has been designated by faculty rule or by the college faculty.
- (2) ~~To a~~Approve courses of study for students in ~~his or her~~their college, to warn students who are delinquent in their studies and to recommend appropriate student disciplinary action to the appropriate university disciplinary body or official.
- (3) ~~To p~~Present candidates for degrees to the president on behalf of the college faculty and to serve as a member of the council of deans (see rule 3335-3-223 of the Administrative Code).
- (4) ~~After consultation with the chairs of the departments and the directors of the schools within the college to m~~Make recommendations to the executive vice president and provost concerning the college budget, and concerning the appointments to and promotions within the staff and the membership of the college faculty, after consultation with the chairs of the departments and the directors of the schools within the college.
- (5) ~~To r~~Review in consultation with the faculty the college's pattern of administration (POA). The POA shall be consistent with the principles of faculty governance and the responsibilities of the dean. At the beginning of each five-year term, in consultation with the faculty, the dean shall either reaffirm or revise the existing POA. The existing POA shall be the starting point for the review of the POA and shall remain in effect until the process is complete. Any revisions to the existing POA shall be accomplished first with broad faculty input, obtained in a manner consistent with the college's established practices and procedures, and, second, with faculty approval, also consistent with the college's practices and procedures. If faculty approval is not achieved, the dean shall explain the rationale in writing for the departure in order to enhance communication and facilitate understanding.

The POA will be submitted to the executive vice president and provost for approval. After approval, the POA shall be made available to all members of the faculty, be posted on the college web site, and be distributed to each department and the college office.

For purposes of defining minimum content the following shall be included in the POA:

- (a) Introductory Statement
- (b) College Mission
- (c) Types of faculty appointments and their respective governance rights
- (d) Organization of College Services and Staff
- (e) Overview of College Administration
- (f) Description of college faculty governance structure, including at least a College Investigation and Sanctioning Committee (Faculty Rule 3335-04-~~(E)~~) and a Salary Appeals Committee

- (g) Policies governing faculty responsibilities and teaching assignments
- (h) Policies governing allocation of college resources
- (i) Grievance procedures
- (j) A statement recognizing in principle the presumption favoring faculty rule on those matters in which faculty have primary responsibility, including: curriculum, subject matter and methods of instruction, research, faculty status (appointment, promotion and tenure of faculty), and those aspects of student life which relate to the educational process. (Source: AAUP Statement on Government of Colleges and Universities)

(C) The dean is hereby given authority requisite to carrying out the responsibilities of his or her position. The dean and the executive dean may delegate any of his or her responsibility and authority to another member of the faculty of the college. The dean and executive dean shall be a voting member of the faculty of each department.

(D) The usual method of communication between the dean and the president or the board of trustees shall be through the office of academic affairs~~appropriate staff member~~, then to the president and through the president to the board of trustees.

(Board approval dates: 4/4/1997, 2/6/1998, 12/4/1998, 9/1/1999, 12/2/2005, 2/11/2011, 11/9/2012)

3335-3-29.1 Dean and director of a regional campus.

(A) There shall be a dean and director of each regional campus who shall be a member of its faculty and the administrative head of the regional campus. The dean and director shall be appointed by the board of trustees upon nomination of the executive vice president and provost in consultation with the president. Before making this nomination, the executive vice president and provost or designee shall confer with the regional campus faculty and the department or school in which the faculty appointment would be made, and shall consider the recommendations of the deans of the colleges with regular faculty assigned to that campus.

(B) The major responsibility of each regional campus dean and director shall be that of providing active leadership in the promotion, direction, and support of educational activities and research opportunities, in the maintenance of a high level of morale among the faculty, and in the encouragement of the spirit of learning among the students. In addition, the dean and director shall have administrative responsibility for the program of the regional campus subject to the approval of the executive vice president and provost or designee, the president, and the board of trustees. These administrative responsibilities shall include the duties to:

~~(1)~~ (1) ~~To p~~Preside at meetings of the faculty executive committee ~~and to~~

~~(1)(2)~~ (2) ~~a~~Appoint members to regional campus committees unless the method of selection is determined by the Administrative Code or by the regional campus faculty.

~~(2)(3)~~ (3) ~~To d~~Develop in consultation with the faculty a pattern of administration for the regional campus following the principles set forth in paragraph (C)(2) of rule 3335-3-35 of the Administrative Code.

~~(3)(4)~~ (4) ~~To e~~Communicate to the regional campus community the educational programs, standards, and policies of the campus and the university.

~~(4)~~(5) ~~To e~~ Establish the extent and variety of course offerings on the regional campus in consultation with the executive vice president and provost or designee, the appropriate college deans, department chairs or school directors, and the faculty of the regional campus.

~~(5)~~(6) ~~To e~~ Consult with the appropriate college dean and department chair or school director and to jointly offer employment to prospective faculty members assigned to the campus.

~~(6)~~(7) ~~To a~~ Assist the appropriate college deans, department chairs, and school directors in the annual review of all faculty assigned to the regional campus. This assistance shall include a written evaluation of the faculty member's teaching, research, and service activities ~~on at~~ and for the regional campus. The regional campus dean and director shall be consulted when a regional campus faculty member is being considered for promotion and tenure and may suggest such candidates to the appropriate chairs and directors.

~~(7)~~(8) ~~To p~~ Prepare and administer the regional campus budget in consultation with the regional campus faculty budget committee; to consult with the appropriate chair or director regarding faculty salary recommendations; to be responsible for the management, maintenance, and security of the physical plant and capital equipment of the regional campus.

~~(8)~~(9) ~~To m~~ Maintain liaison with community councils and agencies and to garner support of regional campus programs and activities.

~~(9)~~(10) ~~To d~~ Develop, promote, and maintain educational, cultural, and service programs with approval of the appropriate university bodies and administrative officials. The dean and director shall review all such programs periodically.

(Board approval dates: 2/1/1980, 7/8/1983, 3/2/1984, 10/4/1985, 6/11/1986, 12/5/1986, 11/2/1990, 5/3/1996, 4/4/1997, 12/4/1998, 6/7/2005)

3335-3-30.1 Dean ~~for of~~ undergraduate education.

- (A) There shall be a dean of undergraduate education who shall be a member of the faculty charged with overseeing and implementing policies related to undergraduate academic programming. The major responsibility of the dean ~~for of~~ undergraduate education shall be that of providing active leadership in the promotion, direction, and support of undergraduate educational activities of the university, and in the encouragement of the spirit of learning among the students. The dean ~~for of~~ undergraduate education shall be appointed and reappointed by the board of trustees upon nomination by the executive vice president and provost in consultation with the president.
- (B) The dean of undergraduate education shall serve as a member of the council of deans, and in general, be responsible for the progress of the educational policies and the well-being of undergraduate programs at the university. The dean shall report to the executive vice president and provost upon the condition and progress of the undergraduate education whenever called upon to do so.
- (C) The dean of undergraduate education shall work with colleges to propose and implement policies of the faculty with respect to the development of programming for challenging academic experiences for undergraduate students; the curricula and requirements for baccalaureate programs and the

development of new and useful undergraduate programs; general education requirements, including the retention and ongoing development of curricula assigned specifically for the general education of all undergraduate students; a general university honors program; and other academic programs that are necessary and supportive of undergraduate studies.

- (D) The dean of undergraduate education shall be responsible for the coordination of university advising and curricular counseling. Specifically, the dean of undergraduate education shall keep colleges informed of all changes in curricular requirements and other matters pertaining to academic advising, and in this manner assist in achieving consistency of advising across the university.
- (E) The dean of undergraduate education shall be consulted by the deans of the colleges on matters relating to university-wide aspects in undergraduate instruction.
- (F) With the approval of the faculty, or its designated representative body and the deans of the colleges, the dean of undergraduate education may appoint committees from the faculty to work with ~~him or her~~ them in the implementation of those policy areas as outlined in paragraphs (C) and (D) of this rule.
- (G) The dean is hereby granted all authority necessary to carry out the responsibilities of the dean of undergraduate education.
- (H) The dean of undergraduate education shall also be responsible for such other matters pertinent to undergraduate education that may be designated by the executive vice president and provost.

(Board approval dates: 12/5/1986, 11/2/1990, 6/3/1994, 5/3/1996, 4/4/1997, 12/4/1998, 6/22/2012)

3335-3-31 Dean of the graduate school.

- (A) There shall be a dean of the graduate school who shall be the administrative head of the graduate school. The dean shall be appointed by the board of trustees upon nomination of the president. Before making a nomination, the president shall confer with the research and graduate council.
- (B) The dean of the graduate school shall have the same general responsibilities and authorities that pertain to the deans of the ~~several~~ colleges. The dean shall also preside at the meetings of the research and graduate council and of its executive committee, make recommendations to the council concerning all such matters as are of primary importance in the development of the graduate work of the university, and make recommendations to the executive vice president and provost concerning the budget of the graduate school to provide for the proper maintenance of the school and to assist in the development of graduate work and research programs.

The dean of the graduate school shall present candidates for graduate degrees to the president, serve as a member of the council of deans, and in general, be responsible for the progress of the educational policies and well-being of the school. The dean shall report to the appropriate member of the president's planning cabinet upon the condition and progress of the graduate school whenever called upon to do so.

- (C) ~~Since the department or school is the unit of university organization for instruction and research in a definite field of learning, t~~he departments or schools offering graduate work shall confer with the dean of the graduate school in all matters related to graduate work. In all matters pertaining to teaching load and adjustment of personnel, the dean of the graduate school shall consult with the dean of the appropriate college.

- (D) The dean ~~is hereby granted~~ has all authority necessary to carry out the responsibilities of the dean of the graduate school.
- (E) The dean shall appoint all graduate school committees unless their membership has been designated by these faculty rules, the research and graduate council, or the graduate faculty.
- (F) Any of the responsibility and authority of the dean of the graduate school may be delegated to another member of the graduate faculty.
- (G) The usual method of communication between the dean of the graduate school and the president or the board of trustees shall be the same as for the deans of the colleges.

(Board approval dates: 12/4/1998, 6/7/2005, 6/6/2008)

3335-3-32 Associate and assistant deans or directors, coordinators, and other officials.

Each college, the graduate school, and each regional campus may have associate and assistant deans or directors, coordinators, or such administrative officials as are needed to carry out the programs of each unit. These persons positions shall be appointed pursuant to the procedures outlined in rule 3335-5-02 of the Administrative Code and shall be responsible to the principal administrative official of the educational unit, ~~and~~. They shall also have such responsibilities and authorities as may be delegated to them from time to time by that official.

(Board approval dates: 6/7/2005, 2/01/2013)

3335-3-33 Secretaries.

Each college and the graduate school shall have a secretary who shall be responsible for keeping the records of the college, including the minutes of all college or graduate school faculty meetings. The secretary shall be appointed pursuant to the procedures outlined in rule 3335-5-02 of the Administrative Code and shall have such additional responsibilities and authorities as may be delegated to ~~him or her~~ them from time to time by the dean. An associate or assistant dean or other college or graduate school officer may also be designated as the secretary of the college or of the graduate school (see paragraph (D)(5) of rule 3335-3-34 of the Administrative Code, for secretary of a school).

(Board approval dates: 3/3/1978, 12/1/1995, 6/29/2001)

3335-3-34 Schools, departments, divisions, and sections; defined and located.

- (A) The units of a college organization for instruction, research, and service are the school, department, and division.
- ~~(B)~~ — Each of these units should normally meet the following qualitative requirements: ~~(A particular unit may not meet all the criteria, but the formation of a unit that does not meet all of the criteria should only be approved when circumstances~~ when circumstances dictate that approval is important to the academic

development of the university.)

- (1) A recognized, discrete area of academic concern not already included within the mission of another school, department or division.
- (2) A proposed or existing academic program at both undergraduate and graduate or graduate professional levels.
- (3) A source of faculty members prepared to offer academic work in the subject concerned.
- (4) An academic subject that offers research and/or public service opportunities in addition to formal classroom teaching and has the potentiality for developing recognition by other scholarly groups.
- (5) An academic field that has developed or is in the process of developing a student clientele either for the purpose of major programs or as an important "service" discipline to other major programs.
- (6) The ability to assume primary fiscal responsibility.

(B) A particular unit may not meet all the aforementioned criteria, but the formation of a unit that does not meet all of the criteria should only be approved when circumstances dictate that approval is important to the academic development of the university.

(C) Schools and departments shall have a minimum of ten tenure-track faculty positions spread through at least one of each of the three academic ranks of assistant professor to professor, unless persuasive academic reasons demonstrate the need for exceptions.

(D) A school is differentiated from a department as follows:

- (1) The undergraduate or graduate work offered by a school may lead to "tagged" degrees.
- (2) Recipients of "tagged" degrees shall be recommended for such degrees by the faculty of the appropriate school.
- (3) A school, with the exception of the graduate school, may be organized into departments, divisions, or sections.
- (4) A school, with the exception of the graduate school, shall be responsible to a college for administrative purposes. Curricular proposals developed by the school shall be transmitted to the council on academic affairs for review and action after approval by the college dean or designee.
- (5) A school may establish its own admission and retention policies and requirements within the framework of university policies and may retain student personnel records for those students enrolled in degree programs under the control of the school. To facilitate the conduct of these activities, a school shall appoint a secretary, with the responsibilities outlined for a secretary of a college (see rule 3335-3-33 of the Administrative Code).

(E) A "division" is an academic unit established within a college or a school to provide for a developing need

in a circumscribed subject. The head of such a unit shall be known as the chair of a division, shall have academic responsibility, and may be assigned fiscal responsibility by the respective dean of the college or director of the school. This unit shall be responsible for instruction, service, and research in a specific academic concern. Such units may be established in any field in which a new department is not feasible, but in which there is a possibility that growth in the subject may eventually lead to the status of a department. However, the determination to establish such a unit need not be based solely on the presumption that such a unit will attain this status. The status of these units shall be reviewed periodically by the council on academic affairs.

- (F) A "section" is an informal unit within a school, department, division, or academic center ~~which~~ that is established to expedite the administration of a given academic subject. The function of a section shall be to assist the parent unit in the administration of the subject and to provide an organizational structure for relationships with professional organizations or other individuals with similar interests. The faculty member in charge shall be known as the section head. The head of the section is appointed by the administrator of the parent unit and has responsibilities delegated by the administrator of the parent unit. The formation of a section must be reported to the council on academic affairs.

~~(G) Schools, departments, and divisions shall be located with respect to colleges as shown in the current catalog of "The Ohio State University Bulletin—Course Offerings."~~

- ~~(H)~~(G) The establishment or abolition of schools, departments, and divisions shall require approval by the council on academic affairs, the university senate, and the board of trustees (see rule 3335-3-37 of the Administrative Code.

(Board approval dates: 4/2/1971, 3/2/1984, 5/3/1996, 6/1/2001, 6/22/2012, 2/2/2018)

3335-3-35 Chairs of departments, directors of schools.

- (A) The chair of each department and the director of each school shall be the administrative head, respectively, of the department or school. The department chair and the director of a school perform a dual function. In addition to being the administrative head of the department or school, the chair or director represents the faculty of the department or school in dealing with the dean or others in the university administration. Upon the nomination of the president or ~~his or her~~ their designee, the board of trustees shall appoint each chair and director for a term of four years subject to the annual review provisions of the office of academic affairs. A chair or director shall be eligible for reappointment. In selecting a chair or director, the president or ~~his or her~~ their designee shall confer with the dean of the college involved. The dean, in turn, will consult with the faculty of the department or school on all campuses, as well as other appropriate university officials. The president or ~~his or her~~ their designee shall give substantial weight to faculty recommendations in reaching a decision regarding a nomination or recommendation for reappointment. Department chairs and directors of schools report to the deans of their colleges.
- (B) The president or ~~his or her~~ their designee may remove a chair or director during a four-year term after consultation with the voting faculty and dean of the unit involved. The views of the faculty shall be given substantial weight in arriving at any decision to remove a chair or director from office.
- (C) The duties of the chair of a department or the director of a school shall be as follows:
- (1) To have general administrative responsibility for its program, subject to the approval of the dean of the college.

- (2) To develop, in consultation with the faculty, a pattern of administration. This pattern of administration shall be made available to all present and prospective members of the faculty of the department or school, and a copy shall be deposited in the office of the dean of the college and in the office of the executive vice president and provost.

For purposes of defining minimum content, the following shall be included in the pattern of administration:

- (a) A statement requiring the chair to provide a schedule of all regular faculty meetings (see rule 3335-5-18 of the Administrative Code) to all faculty members before the start of each semester, summer term, or session.
 - (b) A statement requiring the chair to maintain minutes of all faculty meetings and to maintain records of all other actions covered by the pattern of administration.
 - (c) A statement that the chair will consult with the faculty ~~as a whole on on~~ all policy matters, and that such consideration will, whenever practicable, be undertaken at a meeting of the faculty as a whole.
 - (d) A statement recognizing in principle the presumption favoring majority faculty rule on all matters covered by the pattern of administration. This statement shall further provide that whenever majority faculty rule is not followed, the department or faculty chair, or school director, or dean and director of a regional campus, whichever is the case, shall explain the reasons for the departure to enhance communication and to facilitate understanding within the department. Where possible, this statement of reasons shall be provided before the departure occurs. This explanation shall outline the decision of the majority of the faculty, the decision of the department or faculty chair, or school director, or dean and director of the regional campus, whichever is the case, and the reasons the decisions differ. The explanation shall be communicated to the faculty in writing, where possible, or at a faculty meeting, with an opportunity provided for faculty to comment.
 - (e) A statement affirming that the faculty shall be consulted in the initiation and in the review and selection of new faculty members for appointment.
 - (f) A statement explaining how faculty duties and responsibilities in instruction, scholarship, and service are to be assigned and distributed equitably.
- (3) To prepare, after consultation with the faculty and in accordance with the pattern of departmental administration, a statement setting forth the criteria and procedures according to which recommendations are made concerning appointments and/or dismissals, salary adjustments, promotions in rank, and matters affecting the reappointment and tenure of the faculty. This statement shall be made available to all present and prospective members of the department or school, and a copy shall be deposited in the office of the dean of the college and in the office of ~~the executive vice president and provost~~ academic affairs. At the beginning of each four-year term of the chair of a department or the director of a school, the members of the department or school, the office of the dean of the college, and the office of ~~the executive vice president and provost~~ academic affairs shall receive either a revision or reaffirmation of the original statement.
- (4) To operate the business of the department or school with efficiency and ~~dispatch~~ timeliness.

- ~~(5)~~ To plan with the members of the faculty and the dean of the college a progressive program.
- ~~(6)~~(5) To plan with the members of the faculty and the dean of the college evaluate continuously the regular evaluation of the instructional and administrative processes and ~~(6)~~ lead in the study of ~~(6)~~ of improving them methods for their improvement, and to develop a plan for ensuring that students progress toward timely program completion.
- ~~(7)~~(6) To evaluate faculty members periodically in accordance with criteria approved by the board of trustees and subject to instructions from the executive vice president and provost, and also according to such supplemental criteria as may be set up by the department or school.
- ~~(8)~~(7) To inform faculty members when they receive their annual review of their right to review their primary personnel file maintained by their tenure initiating unit and to place in that file a response to any evaluation, comment or other material contained in the file.
- ~~(9)~~(8) To recommend to the dean of the college, after consultation with the faculty in accordance with paragraph (C)(3) of this rule, appointments, promotions, dismissals, and matters affecting the reappointment and tenure of members of the department or school faculty.
- ~~(10)~~(9) To encourage research and educational investigations.
- (10) To see that all faculty, regardless of their assigned location, are offered the departmental privileges and responsibilities appropriate to their rank, ~~and in general t~~
- (11) To lead in maintaining a high level of morale among faculty.
- (12) To see that adequate supervision and training are given to those members of the faculty and staff who may profit by such assistance.
- (13) To prepare (after consultation with ~~the professors, associate professors, and assistant professors with tenure faculty~~) annual budget recommendations for ~~the consideration of by~~ the dean of the college.
- (14) To promote improvement of instruction by providing for the evaluation of each course when offered, including written evaluation by students of the course and instructors, and periodic course review by the faculty.

(Board approval dates: 3/10/1966, 5/6/1977, 2/1/1980, 4/1/1983, 6/11/1986, 10/2/1987, 11/2/1990, 3/12/1993, 5/3/1996, 4/4/1997, 2/6/1998, 12/4/1998, 9/1/1999, 6/7/2005, 5/14/2010, 6/6/2014, 4/8/2016)

3335-3-36 Centers and institutes.

(A) Definition of an academic center (institute).

An academic center is a non-degree granting educational unit of the university engaged in research; instruction; or clinical, outreach, or related service. An academic center is defined by its mission and scope, not its title, and may be described as a center, institute, laboratory, or similar term. Use of "center" or

"institute" in the names of proposed units of the university shall be limited to academic centers, unless otherwise approved by the council on academic affairs. ~~See paragraph (C) of rule 3335-3-56 of the Administrative Code, for definition of non-academic centers.~~ Academic centers are of two broad types: university centers and college centers.

University centers typically will have a substantial research/scholarship component to their mission, but also may be involved in instruction, and/or related service. Their internal funding (initial and continuing) is drawn fully, or in large part, from central university funds (*i.e.* office of the president, office of academic affairs, office of research). The leadership of the center will report to one or more of those offices.

College centers typically will have some mix, with variable emphases, of research/scholarship, instruction, service, clinical or outreach missions. Internal funding (initial and continuing) is drawn fully, or in large part, from one college or a small set of colleges. The leadership of the center will report to one dean or a small set of deans.

(B) Establishment, reporting, and oversight.

(1) Establishment of university centers

Proposals for university centers will be developed following the "guidelines for the establishment and review of academic centers" and submitted to the office of academic affairs for action.

The chair of the council on academic affairs (CAA), the executive vice president and provost's designee to that council, and the chair of the university research committee (URC) will review the proposal to ensure adherence to the guidelines and determine if it includes a substantial research component.

If so, a "centers subcommittee" of the council, supplemented with membership from URC, will review the proposal and bring a recommendation for action to CAA. If a substantial research component does not exist, the special subcommittee of the council (without URC involvement) will review the proposal and bring a recommendation for action to CAA.

If approved by CAA, the proposal will be sent to the university senate for final approval. That action will be communicated to the board of trustees.

(2) Establishment of college centers.

Each college will have a template for the establishment and review of centers that will be included in the college pattern of administration. Copies of college templates also will be maintained in the office of academic affairs (OAA). Proposals will be developed with adherence to the template, and submitted to the dean(s) of the college(s).

No review/action by CAA is required. The dean(s) will inform the OAA of the establishment of such a center. OAA will inform CAA, resulting in official institutional notification.

The office of academic affairs shall maintain a register of all academic centers and appropriate records concerning each one.

(3) Curricula and faculty affiliation.

Although neither university nor college centers may establish independent course offerings and degree programs, they may participate in cooperative programs involving course offerings and degree programs within existing academic units. With the approval of the council on academic affairs, the faculty of a school or college may delegate to an academic center the authority to offer courses or degree programs established under the auspices of that school or college. Proposals for any such courses or programs must be forwarded to the office of academic affairs with the signature approval of the appropriate school or college which must retain ultimate authority and responsibility for the courses or degree programs.

University faculty and staff may affiliate with the academic center under procedures approved by its oversight committee. Academic centers shall not serve as tenure initiating units.

(4) Administration.

An academic center shall be administered by a director who shall be appointed by and report to the dean, relevant vice president(s) or deans of the pertinent college(s).

(5) Oversight.

Each university and college center shall have an oversight committee, at least two-thirds of whose members are [regular-tenure track](#) faculty from the academic units involved in the center. The director shall consult regularly with the oversight committee.

The director of each academic center shall develop in conjunction with the oversight committee a pattern of administration for the center.

(6) Review process.

All university centers will be reviewed two years after initial establishment and at four-year intervals thereafter. The centers subcommittee of CAA will conduct the review following the "guidelines for the establishment and review of centers" and bring a recommendation for action to CAA. The range of actions include: continuation, conditional continuation with a follow-up in less than four years, and termination.

All college centers will be monitored through annual reports to the college dean(s). Should significant change to a center occur, or a decision be made to abolish a center, notification of that decision will be made to the office of academic affairs and through it to CAA.

(7) Previously established centers.

All existing academic centers established outside of this rule shall be reviewed under the requirements of this rule. Those not in compliance with the rule shall be allowed one additional year to make appropriate adjustments to allow for their continuation.

Note: the request of any established center seeking to move from one type to another must be reviewed and approved by CAA.

(C) Conditional use of the term "center."

Start-up centers are permitted. Following submission of a formal request by a vice president or dean and expedited review and approval by CAA, the term "center" may be used related to external or central funding possibilities. That action will be communicated directly to the board of trustees. Should funding not be secured within one year, the unit must request from CAA an extension of the use of the term. Once funding is secured, the appropriate process for establishment of a university or college center must be initiated within one year.

(Board approval dates: 9/8/1961, 6/4/1993, 8/1/1997, 12/4/1998, 6/7/2005, 6/6/2008, 2/01/2013)

3335-3-37 Alteration or abolition of units.

(A) Definitions.

- (1) The term unit refers to departments, schools and colleges.
- (2) For purposes of this rule, the term alteration shall refer to the consolidation or reconfiguration of units. Consolidation shall refer to the combining of two or more units, with little or no additional change. Reconfiguration shall refer to the breaking apart of existing units and their academic programs and recombining the faculty and programs into new units.
- (3) For the purposes of this rule, the term abolition shall refer to the complete elimination of a unit and the academic programs it provided.
- (4) Alteration or abolition described herein may be initiated without a declaration of financial exigency.

(B) Procedure for alteration or abolition of departments and schools.

- (1) A proposal to alter or abolish a ~~unit~~ department or school may be initiated by any of the following:
 - (a) The dean of the college administratively responsible for the ~~unit~~ department(s) or school(s) for which alteration or abolition is proposed,
 - (b) The executive vice president and provost,
 - (c) The council on academic affairs, or
 - (d) Faculty from the affected unit(s).
- (2) A proposal for alteration or abolition of a ~~unit~~ department or school must include an analysis with the following elements. It shall be the responsibility of the party making the proposal to provide this analysis.
 - (a) A rationale for alteration or abolition of the ~~unit~~ department(s) or school(s) which includes a history of the formation, activities and evaluation of the performance of the unit.
 - (b) An enumeration of all faculty affected by the alteration or abolition of the ~~unit~~ department(s) or school(s).

- (c) A person-by-person analysis of the proposed reassignment or other accommodation of the faculty identified in paragraph (B)(2)(b) of this rule, including a statement of the impact on promotion and tenure. No tenured faculty member shall be involuntarily terminated as a result of this process. However, faculty may be transferred to another unit in accordance with paragraph (C)(2) of rule 3335-6-06 of the Administrative Code, ~~and with regard to the~~ also considering the teaching, research, and service expertise of the individual.
 - (d) An analysis of the academic courses now taught by the ~~unit~~ department(s) or school(s) and provisions for their reassignment to other ~~units~~ departments or schools, if relevant.
 - (e) An analysis of the students affected by the proposal, including majors, non-majors, professional and graduate students.
 - (f) Specific proposals regarding support for currently enrolled students until degree completion.
 - (g) An analysis of the budgetary consequences to all relevant ~~units~~ department(s) or school(s) ~~resulting from as a consequence of~~ the proposal.
 - (h) An analysis of the services lost to the rest of the university as a consequence of the proposal.
 - (i) An analysis of impact on constituencies external to the university, including alumni.
 - (j) An analysis of the impact on governance at all relevant levels as a consequence of the proposal.
 - (k) An analysis of the impact upon diversity.
 - (l) An analysis of the impact on the academic freedom and responsibility of all affected faculty.
- (3) The proposal must be discussed with affected faculty, students, and staff, who may provide written and verbal feedback. The proposal may be modified by the proposal's initiator in response to feedback. Following a thorough consultative process with affected faculty, students, staff, and others as appropriate, the college faculty shall vote on the proposal. The proposal, along with the numerical vote of the college faculty, shall then be forwarded to the council on academic affairs.
 - (4) The proposal will be judged by the assessment parameters developed by the council on academic affairs and published in its guidelines. The council on academic affairs will review the proposal and will also evaluate the consultation process. It will then return the proposal to the initiator for additional work if the proposal or the consultation has been judged inadequate, or approve the proposal and send it to the university senate for consideration, or disapprove the proposal, which ends the process.
 - (5) If the council on academic affairs approves the proposal, a memorandum of understanding will be developed and signed by all relevant parties.
 - (6) The university senate shall vote on the proposal. If it approves the proposal, the

recommendation shall be forwarded to the president. A negative vote ends the process.

- (7) The president shall review the proposal. If in favor, the president will forward it to the board of trustees. If the board of trustees approves the proposal, then the executive vice president and provost will appoint an oversight committee to monitor the implementation of the process. The chair of faculty council or designee, the secretary of the university senate, one member of the committee on academic freedom and responsibility, and three members of faculty council shall be appointed to the oversight committee. The purpose of which the oversight committee is to safeguard the interests of affected faculty, students, and staff. Through the chair of faculty council, the oversight committee will periodically report to the university senate, review and assess outcomes, suggest changes where targets are not being met, and assure that the memorandum of understanding is upheld. The oversight committee will present a final report to the senate.

(C) Procedure for alteration or abolition of colleges.

- (1) The council on academic affairs, the executive vice president and provost, the dean, or faculty from the affected unit may initiate a proposal to alter or abolish a college.
- (2) A proposal for alteration and abolition of a college must include an analysis with of all of the elements outlined in paragraph (B)(2) of this rule. It shall be the responsibility of the party making the proposal to provide this analysis.
- (3) The council on academic affairs shall appoint an ad hoc committee to evaluate the proposal. The ad hoc committee shall have a majority comprised of tenure-track faculty. The charge to the ad hoc committee and the composition of that committee must be agreed upon by the council on academic affairs, the executive committee of faculty council, and the executive vice president and provost.
- (4) The ad hoc committee shall evaluate the proposal, which will shall include extensive consultation with affected faculty, students, and staff, and relevant parties external to the university, as described in (B)(3) of this rule.
- (5) The recommendation of the ad hoc committee will be forwarded to the council on academic affairs and the executive vice president and provost.
- (6) Prior to accepting or rejecting the ad hoc committee's recommendation, the council on academic affairs will consult with faculty council and the executive vice president and provost. The faculty council response, including its vote, and a letter of recommendation from the executive vice president and provost shall be considered by the council on academic affairs. The council on academic affairs will then either terminate the process or forward its positive recommendation to the university senate.
- (7) If the council on academic affairs approves the proposal, a memorandum of understanding will be developed and signed by all relevant parties.
- (8) The university senate shall vote on the proposal. If it approves the proposal, the recommendation shall be forwarded to the president. A negative vote ends the process.
- (9) The president shall review the proposal. If in favor, the president shall forward it to the board of trustees. If the board of trustees approves the proposal, then the executive vice president and

provost will appoint an oversight committee to monitor the implementation of the process. The chair of faculty council or designee, the secretary of the university senate, one member of the committee on academic freedom and responsibility, and three members of faculty council shall be appointed to the oversight committee. The purpose of the oversight committee is to safeguard the interests of affected faculty, students, and staff. Through the chair of faculty council, the oversight committee will periodically report to the university senate, review and assess outcomes, suggest changes where targets are not being met, and assure that the memorandum of understanding is upheld. The oversight committee will present a final report to the senate within one year of implementation.

(Board approval dates: 6/1/2001, 6/4/2004, 5/14/2010, 6/6/2014)

3335-48.2, 48.3: Council on Distance Education, Libraries and Information Technology (DELIT)

Deleted Text: DELIT (3335-5-48.2)

~~3335-5-48.2 Council on distance education, libraries and information technology.~~

A. ~~Membership.~~

~~The council on distance education, libraries and information technology shall consist of sixteen members.~~

- ~~1. Eight faculty.~~
- ~~2. Three students.~~
 - ~~a. One graduate student.~~
 - ~~b. One professional student.~~
 - ~~c. One undergraduate student.~~
- ~~3. Four administrators (or their designees).~~
 - ~~a. The dean of the graduate school.~~
 - ~~b. The dean of university libraries.~~
 - ~~c. The chief information officer.~~
 - ~~d. The associate vice president for distance education.~~
- ~~4. One staff member, appointed by the university staff advisory committee.~~

B. ~~Duties and responsibilities.~~

- ~~1. Formulate policies governing the delivery of distance education and educational and research activities and services of libraries and information technology.~~
- ~~2. Assist in the interpretation of distance education, library, and information technology services to the university community.~~
- ~~3. Assist in the presentation of major distance education, library and information technology needs to the university administration.~~
- ~~4. Advise the appropriate administrative office on the appointment of the associate vice president for distance education, the dean of university libraries, and the chief information officer.~~

C. ~~Organization.~~

- ~~1. The chair shall be elected from among the voting members of the council.~~

1. ~~Reports by this council to the president, other than those made through the senate, shall be made through the executive vice president and provost.~~
2. ~~As a standing committee of the senate, this council is also governed by the provisions of rules 3335-5-46 and 3335-5-48 of the Administrative Code.~~

New Text: Library Committee and Committee on Academic Technology (3335-5-48.2 and 3335-5-48.3)

3335-5-48.2 Library Committee

A. Membership. The library committee shall consist of thirteen members.
Six faculty.

1. Three students.
 - a) One graduate student.
 - b) One professional student.
 - c) One undergraduate student.
2. Three administrators.
 - a) The dean of university libraries.
 - b) Chief information officer (or their designees)
 - c) The vice president for research (or their designees).
3. One staff member, appointed by the dean of the university libraries in consultation with the university staff advisory committee.

B. Duties and responsibilities.

1. Advise the dean of university libraries in the planning and implementation of programs and policies supporting the educational, research, and service activities of libraries and related units.
2. Articulate the library's mission, goals, and needs to the university administration.
3. Assist the dean of university libraries in the assessment, improvement, and promotion of library and information services that support the university community.
4. Advise the dean of university libraries on agreements with publishers and information vendors that are in the best interest of the university community.
5. Advise the appropriate administrative office on the appointment of the dean of university libraries.

C. Organization.

1. The chair shall be elected from among the voting members of the committee.

2. As a standing committee of the senate, this committee is governed by the provisions of rules 3335-5-46 of the Administrative Code.

3335-5-48.3 Committee on Academic Technology

(A) Membership. The committee on academic technology shall consist of eighteen members.

1. Eight faculty
2. Three students
 - a) One graduate student
 - b) One professional student
 - c) One undergraduate student
3. Four administrators (or their designees)
 - a) The chief information officer
 - b) The vice president for research
 - c) The executive vice president for research, innovation and knowledge
 - d) The chief digital learning officer
4. Three staff members. Two staff members shall be appointed by the university staff advisory committee, and one by the chief information officer.

(B) Duties and Responsibilities

1. Advise the chief information officer in the planning and implementation of academic technology programs and policies, including those pertaining to education, research and service activities.
2. Assist the university administration in the identification, review, and improvement of academic technology infrastructure.
3. Advocate for academic technology infrastructure that is inclusive, affordable, accessible, and user-friendly for faculty, students, and staff.
4. Advise the appropriate administrative office on the appointment of the chief information officer and the chief digital learning officer.

(C) Organization

1. The chair shall be elected from among the voting members of the committee.
2. As a standing committee of the senate, this committee is governed by the provisions of rules 3335-5-46 of the Administrative Code.